ANNUAL REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT

of

THE ACADEMY OF THE SOCIAL SCIENCES IN AUSTRALIA

for the year 1978-79

CANBERRA
The Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia
1979

CONTENTS

Executive Officers 1978-79	3
Committees of the Academy 1978-79	4
Panels	5
The Academy	6
Fellows of the Academy	8
Obituaries	8
Research Projects	11
Publications Sponsored or Assisted by the Academy	12
Joint Academy Activities	13
Annual Lecture	14
Academy Symposium	14
International Activities	14
Finance and Financial Statements	15
List of Presidents of the Academy	24
List of Fellows, June 1979	25

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 1978-79

President

Professor A. G. L. Shaw

Executive Director and Secretary

Dr C. D. Rowley (to 28/2/79)

Professor W. D. Borrie

Honorary Treasurer
Dr G. M. Neutze

Secretary to the Director

Mrs R. S. Buchan

Public Officer
The Secretary

Honorary Auditor

Mrs L. A. Bellingham

Address

National Library Building Canberra ACT 2600 Telephone 73 1869

COMMITTEES OF THE ACADEMY 1978-79

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Professor A. G. L. Shaw (President)

Professor D. A. Aitkin Professor H. C. Brookfield Mr S. S. Dunn Professor N. T. Feather Professor Fay Gale Professor F. H. G. Gruen Professor P. Lawrence

Dr G. M. Neutze (Honorary Treasurer)
The Executive Director

FINANCE COMMITTEE

The President (Chairman)

The Honorary Treasurer The Secretary

Professor R. L. Mathews Professor F. K. Wright

MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE

Professor P. Scott (Convener)

Professor J. L. Dillon Professor A. M. McBriar Dr T. H. Rigby Professor R. Taft

STANDING RESEARCH COMMITTEE

The President (Chairman)

Mr S. I. Benn Dr C. A. Price Professor J. W. Nevile Professor D. Spearritt The Honorary Treasurer

PANELS

Panel A (Anthropology, Demography, Geography, Sociology, Linguistics)

Dr C. A. Price (Chairman)

Professor R. G. Brown

Professor H. C. Brookfield

Dr Marie Reay Professor J. Zubrzycki

Panel B (Economics, Economic History, Business Administration)

Professor J. W. Nevile (Chairman)

Professor J. L. Dillon

Professor G. C. Harcourt

Dr G. M. Neutze

Professor F. H. G. Gruen

Professor J. O. N. Perkins

Panel C (History, Law, Political Science, Social Philosophy)

Mr S. I. Benn (Chairman)

Professor D. A. Aitkin

Dr D. W. Rawson Professor P. Bourke Professor H. A. J. Ford Professor L. C. F. Turner

Panel D (Education, Psychology, Social Medicine)

Professor D. Spearritt (Chairman)

Professor R. A. Champion

Mr S. S. Dunn

Professor N. T. Feather

Professor S. H. Lovibond Professor J. P. Sutcliffe

THE ACADEMY

The Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia (prior to July 1971 the Social Sciences Research Council of Australia) is a corporate body of social scientists. Each member, on election to the Academy, takes the title of Fellow. For the origins and development of the Academy, see the 1975-76 (or an earlier) *Annual Report*, and K. S. Cunningham: *The Social Science Research Council of Australia* 1942-1952, SSRC, Canberra, 1967.

The functions of the Academy are:

- (i) to encourage the advancement of the social sciences in Australia;
- (ii) to act as a co-ordinating group for the promotion of research and teaching in the social sciences;
- (iii) to foster research and to subsidise the publication of studies in the social sciences;
- (iv) to encourage and assist in the formation of other national associations or institutions for the promotion of the social sciences or any branch of them;
- (v) to act as the Australian national member of international organizations connected with social sciences; and
- (vi) to act as a consultant and adviser in regard to social sciences.

As at 30 June 1979 there were one hundred and seventy-two Fellows of the Academy. New Fellows are elected by postal ballot on the recommendation of the Membership Committee. The Academy's functions are discharged by the Executive Committee, which consists of the President, the Secretary, the Treasurer and seven other members, all elected at the Annual General Meeting. All committees and office bearers are responsible to the Annual General Meeting.

Since 1953 the Australian Government has provided an annual grant to assist the Academy to meet administrative and travel costs. In 1978-79 the grant was \$54,800, compared with \$52,000 in the previous year.

The rapid pace of social and economic change has opened up many new areas inviting social inquiry, but with its limited financial resources the Academy must be highly selective in its choice of new research and study areas. To identify such areas, the Academy organized its Fellows some years ago into four research Panels with the subject groupings as indicated on page 5 of this *Report*. The Panels have served the Academy well with advice relating to membership matters, the selection of new research topics and general policy issues. The Panels remain an important element of the Academy's structure. However, as Panel members are grouped by related disciplines only and not by geographical location, their members cannot easily be brought together at a reasonable cost at times other than at the Annual General Meeting. Consequently the Academy is considering additional, more economical measures, such as the creation of groups of Fellows based on States, who might pursue specific functions relating to both research and the promotion of the social sciences between Annual General Meetings. Such groups would supplement, not replace, the Panels. To this end, the President and Director began in May a series of discussions with Fellows in each State, and these meetings will

continue into 1979-80, with the overall results to be discussed by the Annual General Meeting in November 1979.

In the past the Academy has put much emphasis upon its Major Research Projects, which are described in a later section of this Report. These have been major inter-disciplinary exercises which have disseminated their findings in many major books, articles in learned journals, and research reports. These projects have done much to stimulate new research, not merely among the Fellows of the Academy, but widely throughout universities and research institutes in Australia. They have also helped to clarify issues of significance in the formulation of government policies. The conduct of research has also benefited greatly from close collaboration of the research workers with government officials and departments at both Federal and State levels. This interaction has been essential to the progress of these projects. This has been the case particularly with the many individual studies that have flowed from the projects on the Aborigines in Australian Society, and on Immigrants in Australia.

The former of these projects is now complete and in June the Executive Committee agreed that when two topics still under study are completed, the latter project also should be phased out.

Such decisions have to be made to ensure a reasonable spread of activities over time. The resources available to the Academy do not easily enable it to embark upon more than one major project at a time. *Major Projects* are costly enterprises, involving the raising of considerable funds from outside sources, such as statutory bodies and business firms. The *Aborigines* and *Immigration* projects each involved raising about \$100,000: in real terms the cost today would be twice this amount. Raising funds at such levels is not easy, and while the Academy benefits to the degree that gifts to the Academy for *research* purposes have been exempt from income tax since August 1964, donations for other important activities — many of them research related — such as the dissemination of scientific knowledge, do not qualify for such a concession. The Academy still seeks inclusion with those education and research bodies in whose cases a donation does not have to be specifically for research to be accepted as an income tax deduction.

With the winding down of the current project on *Immigration*, the Academy began in 1978-79 to search for other topics of major national significance that would be appropriate for future investigation. This task is not easy for, as the Academy's *Annual Report* for 1977-78 (page 6) emphasized, the pursuit of the social sciences involves "disciplined research" into "undisciplined problems" and the identification of the social questions for which "approximate answers" can be sought. As the regular income of the Academy covers only its essential administrative services, the subject chosen for investigation must also be one that can gain both tangible support from an interested public and meet the scholarly standards of independent inquiry set by the Academy.

It is hoped 1979-80 will see the emergence of such a new topic, to be followed by the long haul of finding outside support and organizing the launching of the research itself – processes which will require a further year of endeavour. Meantime the Academy has been pressing on with a number of shorter-range inquiries, which are described later in this *Report*.

Research is not, however, the only function of the Academy, and the round of discussions in the separate States which began in May has also amongst its objects ways

and means of increasing the effectiveness of the Academy's role as a consultant and adviser and in promoting and encouraging "the advancement of the social sciences" both in Australia and abroad. In these wider roles the Academy appreciates closer collaboration with the Academies of Science, the Technological Sciences and the Humanities through the deliberations of an inter-Academy Committee and in joint seminars and workshops. Details of these activities in 1978-79 are set down in following sections of this *Report*.

The Academy also continued its formal links with international bodies as described later in this *Report*. Throughout the year many Fellows were also engaged in international social science activities as individual scholars and consultants but not as representatives of the Academy.

FELLOWS OF THE ACADEMY

The Rules of the Academy state that "persons who are deemed to have achieved distinction in one or more branches of the social sciences may be elected as Fellows of the Academy if (i) they are nominated by one Fellow and seconded by two other Fellows; (ii) they are recommended by the Membership Committee after investigation of their eligibility; and (iii) they receive the support of a majority of the Fellows for the time being at a postal ballot".

Nine new Fellows were elected in 1978. They were: Professor Fay Gale, University of Adelaide; Professor J. A. Keats, University of Newcastle; Dr R. J. O'Neill, Australian National University; Dr D. W. Rawson, Australian National University; Professor K. W. Ryan, University of Queensland; Professor R. J. W. Selleck, Monash University; Professor P. W. Sheehan, University of Queensland; Professor R. H. Snape, Monash University; and Mr R. H. Wallace, Flinders University of South Australia.

In June 1979 there were 172 Fellows, including ten Honorary and seven Overseas Fellows. It had been decided that up to ten names should be submitted to the postal ballot for election to Fellowship in 1979. The Membership Committee subsequently decided to submit eight names to the ballot. A list of Fellows as at June 1979 is given in pp. 25-30 of this *Report*.

With the deaths of Emeritus Professor A. P. Elkin in July 1979 and of Dr Jean Martin in September 1979, the Academy has lost two of its most distinguished Fellows.

OBITUARIES

EMERITUS PROFESSOR A. P. ELKIN, CMG

The Reverend Emeritus Professor Adolphus Peter Elkin, CMG, who died on 9 July 1979 at the age of 88, was one of Australia's most distinguished anthropologists. After leaving school, he spent four years as a bank clerk and then sought Holy Orders in the Church of England. He enrolled at the University of Sydney (St Paul's College) and graduated with First Class Honours in Philosophy in 1915. Ordained in the same year, he served first at Newcastle Cathedral, and later became a country priest and finally Vice-Warden of St John's Theological College at Armidale, NSW.

During these years Elkin continued his academic interests. In 1922, he lectured on anthropology at Newcastle through the University of Sydney's Tutorial Class Department. He then took out his MA with First Class Honours on a thesis, *The Religion of Australian Aborigines*, again at the University of Sydney. In 1923, after attending the second Pan-Pacific Science Conference, where he met leading British anthropologists, he decided to go to England to take his PhD at University College, London. He took a thorough course in Physical Anthropology and also read Prehistory, although his thesis was once again on a religious topic, *Myth and Ritual of the Australian Aborigines*. He was awarded his Doctorate early in 1927.

In 1926, A. R. Radcliffe-Brown had taken up the first Chair in Anthropology at the University of Sydney. He arranged for Elkin to carry out anthropological surveys of the Kimberley region in Western Australia in 1927-28 and of the north-west of South Australia in 1930. This work established Elkin's close personal ties with the Aborigines: "They were my personal friends who had been killed in 'atrocities', or were being treated harshly or unjustly, or were accepting the extinction of their people as inevitable".

His field-work finished, Elkin became Rector of St James, Morpeth, a position he held until 1937, although at the end of 1933, after the resignation of Radcliffe-Brown, he was appointed also Professor of Anthropology at the University of Sydney. He retired in 1956. Yet the twenty-three years of his incumbency were not without struggle. During the 1930s, he had to fight to establish anthropology permanently at the University. He had to forge links with the Australian National Research Council, and with mission boards and government departments concerned with native affairs in Australia and Papua New Guinea. He received co-operation from them all. At the same time, he extended his field-work in Australia and later in the Western Highlands of New Guinea. He published a series of monographs and papers on Aboriginal ethnography which are internationally regarded as classics. The two best-known are *The Australian Aborigines* (translated into Italian, French and Russian) and *Aboriginal Men of High Degree*. From 1933 until his death he was Editor and Manager of *Oceania and Oceania Publications*. He served as a Fellow of the Senate of the University of Sydney for ten years until 1969.

In addition to his scholarly work as anthropologist, Elkin played a leading role in the promotion of the Social Sciences in Australia. He was a member of the Committee on Research in the Social Sciences which was set up in 1942 under the chairmanship of Professor R. C. Mills as a Committee of the Australian National Research Council. This Committee emerged in 1952 as an independent body known as the Social Science Research Council of Australia Inc., which in turn was transformed in 1971 into the Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia. Elkin played a notable part in all these developments and was made an Honorary Fellow in 1965. But his real dedication through all these years was the welfare of the Aborigines.

Despite its pure ethnographic and theoretical importance, much of Elkin's work was directed towards the progress of Aborigines. As Vice-Chairman of the Aborigines Welfare Board of New South Wales, he was one of the first to awaken the conscience of European Australians and change policy from one of smoothing the dying pillow to that of fostering recognition and development. The award of a CMG in 1966 was some recognition of his very great achievement.

Peter Lawrence

DR JEAN ISOBEL MARTIN

Dr Jean Isobel Martin died in Sydney on September 25 1979 after a prolonged illness. All Fellows of the Academy, the scholarly community of Australia in general, government officials and immigrant groups with whom she collaborated over many years, and a wide circle of friends mourn the loss of one of Australia's leading social scientists and of a generous and gracious person. Scholarly inquiry in the social sciences will remain immensely enriched by her life and work.

Jean was born in 1923 in Melbourne, graduated BA in 1943 and MA in 1945 in Anthropology at Sydney University, with first class honours and a University Medal. After a period of lecturing at Sydney Jean moved to Canberra to become the first doctoral student in the new Department of Anthropology in the Australian National University under the guidance of the late Professor Frederick Nadel. She took out her doctoral degree in 1954 with a thesis on immigrant groups in Goulburn.

This study really established Jean's long commitment to sociological research into immigrant minorities in Australia, a field in which she had no peer. Her insights were deep and penetrating, her methodology always an apt tool immaculately tuned to the problem being analysed, and her scholarly presentations were models of clarity and precise writing.

Others will be recording in detail Jean Martin's many contributions to scholarship, not only her publications but also the monumental pioneering job in both teaching and research which she and her husband Allan performed as the initial professors of sociology and history at the new La Trobe University, between 1966 and 1974. She also did much to foster the recently formed Sociological Association of Australia and New Zealand and served as President from 1969 to 1971. In the latter year she was elected a Fellow of the Academy. The Research School of the Social Sciences welcomed the Martins back to the ANU in 1974, where they sought the greater opportunities to pursue further and bring to publication the major research on which they had both been engaged over the years.

Nevertheless, the demands on Jean continued to be heavy. All associated with migrant research sought her advice. She served on the Australian Population and Immigration Council and was responsible for producing the admirable report, A Decade of Migrant Settlement (AGPS, Canberra, 1976). This was followed by The Migrant Presence (George Allen & Unwin, Sydney, 1978), a most perceptive study of the response of Australian institutions to the immigrant flow from 1947 to 1977. Then came, in 1979, the Report No. 1 on the findings of a major study with Phil Meade on The Educational Experience of Sydney High School Students (AGPS, Canberra) with the intention of completing the larger study by the end of the year. In addition Jean was working towards the completion of her long-term project on Vietnamese refugees before her final illness overtook her.

Jean Martin was one of those rare persons who make only friends; and they will always remember her.

W. D. Borrie

RESEARCH PROJECTS

The Academy has completed three major projects: Women in Australia, Taxation in Australia and Aborigines in Australian Society.

The Academy's fourth major project, Immigrants in Australia, which was begun in 1972, is nearing completion: nine books have been published and two further manuscripts are currently under consideration – I. Burnley, Immigrant Populations in Metropolitan Australia and J. J. Quilkey, Immigrants in the Automobile Industry. Another important area, Immigrants in Australian Politics, is under study by Professor D. A. Aitkin at Macquarie University with ARGC funding. Dr Jean Martin has been continuing the writing up of her Survey of Vietnamese Refugees and is intending to incorporate comparative material from areas of Europe and North America. This project has been supported by funds from Government and from the Research School of Social Sciences of the Australian National University.

Another study arising out of the main project and financially supported by the Commonwealth Department of Education has been Studies in the Education of Migrant Children. The first volume published was that by Professor R. Taft and Desmond Cahill of Monash University, The Adjustment to Schooling of Immigrant Children. This has been followed by Jean I. Martin and Phil Meade, The Educational Experience of Sydney High School Students, which is a summary report of a larger study now in preparation, based on a major survey of the educational experiences of children of non-English-speaking origin.

Another Academy project supported by outside funds (see *Annual Report*, 1976-77, p.12, for details), *Surveys of Australian Economics*, made good progress in 1978-79, with the appearance of two volumes edited by Professor F. H. G. Gruen: Volume I covered monetary policy, wages policy, inflation, agricultural policy and protection policy; and Volume II, income distribution and poverty, urban economics, economics of education, radical economics and Australian economics 1968-78. The final volume is expected to appear in 1980.

In June the Executive Committee also approved a grant of up to \$5,000 to assist further work in the field of youth employment, as a sequel to the monograph *Youth Unemployment* (ed. Professor R. F. Henderson) which incorporated the proceedings of the 1977 Academy Symposium on this topic. The original working party was recalled to plan the new work.

Less satisfactory was the progress of the project on the *Professions in Australia*. A bibliography was completed and papers prepared by selected authors on Law, Medicine, Education, Social Work and Management, but after careful consideration in June, the Executive Committee concluded that further funds should not be allocated to this project and that authors should be encouraged to seek publication of their papers in appropriate journals. The lesson to be learned from this project is that the scope was too ambitious for the degree of support that the Academy could give at the time, both in personhours and financially. The Academy expresses its appreciation of the co-operation of the five authors who prepared papers and its regret that, for the immediate future at least, it cannot sponsor further work in this area.

A list of Academy and Academy-sponsored publications is set down in the next section of this Report.

PUBLICATIONS SPONSORED OR ASSISTED BY THE ACADEMY

Reports on Major Research Projects

Norman MacKenzie: Women in Australia, F. W. Cheshire Pty Ltd, Melbourne, 1962. R. I. Downing, H. W. Arndt, A. H. Boxer, R. L. Mathews: Taxation in Australia: Agenda for Reform, MUP, 1964.

Aborigines Series, ANU Press, Canberra, 1970-76

F. Lancaster Jones: The Structure and Growth of Australia's Aboriginal Population.

R. Taft, J. L. M. Dawson and P. H. Beasley: Attitudes and Social Conditions.

J. P. M. Long: Aboriginal Settlements.

C. D. Rowley: The Destruction of Aboriginal Society.

H. P. Schapper: Aboriginal Advancement to Integration.

C. D. Rowley: Outcasts in White Australia.

C. D. Rowley: The Remote Aborigines.

Fay Gale: *Urban Aborigines*.

P. M. Moodie: *Aboriginal Health*.

L. Broom and F. Lancaster Jones: A Blanket a Year.

Frank Stevens: Aborigines in the Northern Territory Cattle Industry. Hazel M. Smith and Ellen H. Biddle: Look Forward, Not Back.

Elizabeth Eggleston: Fear, Favour or Affection.

Immigrants in Australia Series, ANU Press, Canberra, 1972-79

Jean Martin: Community and Identity. Ruth Johnson: Future Australians. Paul R. Wilson: Immigrants and Politics.

Alan Richardson: British Immigrants and Australia, A Psycho-social Inquiry.

C. A. Price (ed.): Greeks in Australia. Eva Isaacs: Greek Children in Sydney.

M. J. Salter: Studies in the Immigration of the Highly Skilled.

Rachel Unikoski: Communal Endeavours. Migrant Organizations in Melbourne.

John Nightingale: Migrant Household Economic Behaviour.

Ronald Taft and Desmond Cahill: Initial Adjustment to Schooling of Immigrant Families.

Jean I. Martin and Phil Meade: The Educational Experience of Sydney High School Students, Report No. 1.

Australian Economic Series, George Allen & Unwin, Sydney 1978-

F. H. Gruen (ed.): Surveys of Australian Economics, Vols. 1 and 2.

Academy's Own Publications (excluding Annual Lectures)

Annual Reports, since 1956.

Bibliography of Research in the Social Sciences in Australia, 1954-57, 1958. Bibliography of Research in the Social Sciences in Australia, 1957-60, 1961. Bibliography of Research in the Social Sciences in Australia, 1960-63, 1966.

K. S. Cunningham: The Social Sciences Research Council of Australia, 1942-1952, 1967.

J. P. Sutcliffe (ed.): Mathematics Needed for Particular Social Sciences, 1976.

Annual Lectures of the Academy

C. D. Rowley: From Humbug to Politics: Aboriginal Affairs and the Academy Project, 1972.

K. S. Inglis: Naming a Nation, 1974.

Eugene Kamenka: The Age of Feuerbach: Contemporary Changes in the Perception of Man, Law and Society, 1975.

Geoffrey Blainey: The Politics of Big Business: A History, 1976.

Oscar Spate: Plus ça Change . . .? Some Problems of the Sixteenth and the Twentieth Centuries, 1977.

G. C. Harcourt: The Social Science Imperialists, 1978.

Publications Arising from Sponsored Activities

See Annual Report, 1976-77 and earlier.

Publications Subsidised by the Academy

See Annual Report, 1976-77 and earlier.

JOINT ACADEMY ACTIVITIES

The main joint activity was the organization of a Workshop on the Implication of Science and Technology for Development by the three Academies of Science, Technological Sciences and Social Sciences, in collaboration with the Department of Foreign Affairs. The Workshop was designed to assist the preparation of the official Australian paper for presentation to the UN Conference on this topic to be held in Vienna in August 1979.

The Workshop was held in Canberra on April 19 and 20; the keynote address was delivered by Dr H. C. Coombs and a number of Fellows of the Academy delivered papers and chaired discussion groups. The proceedings of the Workshop were published in the volume *Science and Technology for What Purpose? An Australian Viewpoint* (Academy of Science, Canberra, 1979). Following the Canberra Workshop, additional symposia were held, with financial support from the three Academies, in Sydney, Melbourne, Brisbane, Adelaide and Canberra.

In the latter half of 1978, Professor J. L. Dillon represented the Academy on the Organizing Committee and subsequently at the Conference on Climate which was sponsored by the Department of Science and the CSIRO in collaboration with the Academies of Technological Science and Social Sciences. The Conference was held at Phillip Island, Victoria in November 1978 and the Proceedings were published: see Department of Science, CSIRO, Academy of Technological Science, Academy of Social Sciences, The Impact of Climate on Australian Society & Economy (CSIRO, Melbourne, 1979).

On May 23 the Presidents of the four Academies delivered addresses to a seminar in Canberra associated with the Annual General Meeting of the Academy of the Humanities on the theme "The Academies and the Nation". A common strand in the discussions was the desirability of continued collaboration by the four Academies in matters of mutual interest. This aim was given further support at a meeting in June of the original tri-Academy Consultative Committee by a resolution to form a new Committee which should also include representatives of the recently formed Academy of Technological Sciences. Further joint activities of the four Academies are expected to flow from these developments in 1979-80.

ANNUAL LECTURE

The Academy's Annual Lecture was given in the Coombs Lecture Theatre, Research School of Social Sciences, Australian National University on 14 November by Professor G. C. Harcourt, Professor of Economics, Flinders University, South Australia. The subject of Professor Harcourt's lecture was *The Social Science Imperialists*. The lecture was published and is available at the office of the Academy in the National Library, Canberra.

ACADEMY SYMPOSIUM

No Academy symposium was held in association with the 1978 Annual General Meeting but, following a proposal of the Executive Committee, an address – followed by general discussion – was delivered by Dr H. C. Coombs on the topic *The Role of the Academy in Research on Issues of Public Policy*. Dr Coombs recommended more active measures to identify major social, political and economic problems and a more positive approach to government for the support of research leading to recommendations for government action.

The Annual General Meeting also recommended that a symposium should again be held in 1979 with the topic *Trade Unions and the Law*, and that Dr D. Rawson be invited to act as Convener.

INTERNATIONAL ACTIVITIES

The Academy continued its affiliation with the Asian Association of Social Science Research Councils and with the Conference of National Social Science Councils. The Academy was represented at the meetings of these bodies held in 1977 and also intends to have delegates present at the next biennial meetings to be held in September in Manila, and in November in Paris.

On 19 May the President and Fellows of the Academy hosted a lunch and informal seminar in Canberra at which the guests were the eight members of the delegation of the newly-constituted Chinese Academy of the Social Sciences. Academy groups also met with the Chinese delegation as they visited universities in State capitals. As the year closed, an invitation was received from the Chinese Academy for a visit to China

by an Australian group representing the Academies of the Social Sciences and the Humanities and the Australian National University. The President replied expressing the Academy's wish to be represented in such a delegation and initial planning discussions have been held with the other invited parties.

Following their visit to Australia, a set of the publications arising from the Academy's research projects was presented to the Chinese Academy.

FINANCE

The audited financial statements of the Academy for the year ending 30 June 1979 are presented below. The Academy continued to feel the pressures of rising costs, particularly with regard to such items as equipment, travel and printing. It was cold comfort that the position was eased to some degree by an oil strike which prevented the attendance of a considerable number of Fellows at the November Annual General Meeting and its associated committee meetings. The year 1978-79 happened also to be the one in which there were no meetings of the international bodies with which the Academy is associated. It was also possible to effect some reduction in administrative costs during the year. None of these factors is likely to recur in 1979-80.

To assist the task of forward planning it was decided to consolidate the accounts of the Academy in future into three components: the Main Account, Research Project Account and the International Relations Account.

BALANCE SHEET - AS AT 30 JUNE 1979

	1977/78	1978/79			1977/78	1978/79
Current Liabilities	\$	\$	Current Assets		\$	\$
Sundry Creditors	344	300	Bank of New South V	Wales	238	4,889
Grants due but not paid	2,000		Petty cash and postage	e advance	60	_
Subscriptions in advance	30	_	Sundry Debtors - sup	erannuation	710	_
Cheques outstanding now invalid	_	170	Prepayments – superar	nnuation	1,423	
Accumulated Funds			Subscriptions in arrea	rs	240	345
Balance 1977/78 20,845	20,845		Sundry Debtors – ger	neral	_	15
Add surplus 1,435	, , , , , ,	22,280	Investments		16,298	12,414
					18,969	17,663
			Fixed Assets			
			Office furniture	4,250	4,250	
			Less depreciation	342		
				3,908		
			Add purchases:			
			Typewriter	939		
			Sorting tables	240		
						5,087
	\$23,219	\$22,750			\$23,219	\$22,750

G. M. NEUTZE, Hon. Treasurer

I have examined the books and Accounts of The Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia (Main Account). I have obtained all the information and explanations I have required and am of the opinion that the above Balance Sheet and accompanying Statement of Revenue and Expenditure represents a true and fair view of the financial affairs of The Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia (Main Account) as at 30 June 1979.

L. A. BELLINGHAM, B.Com., FASA, Hon. Auditor

Statement of Revenue and Expenditure for the year ended 30 June 1979

	1977/78	1978/79		1977/78	1978/79
REVENUE	\$	\$	EXPENDITURE	\$	\$
Australian Government			Administration Expenses		
General Grant	52,000	54,800	Salaries	31,977	30,298
Other Revenue			Superannuation	2,440	1,610
	4240	4 405	Insurance	121	114
Members' Subscriptions	4,340	4,405	Hon. Auditor	200	200
Interest Received	1,251	1,661	Printing and Stationery	3,924	2,129
Donations	425		Postage	519	595
Sale of Publications	59	13	Sundry Expenses	88	220
Refund of Grant (Map Curators Circle)			Telephone/telegrams	905	648
Study of Professions (not now required)) —	2,000	Advertising/appointment expenses	23	48
Less Transfers:			Office services	300	_
International Relations	2,250	5,750	Maintenance office equipment	194	262
Research Project		9,500	Purchase of publications (for office)	_	152
		,,,,,,,	Depreciation of furniture and equipmen	t —	342
				40,691	36,618
			Academy, Research Panels and	, ,	,
			Committee expenses	9,919	9,576
			Grants C.C.A.E. – Conference on Natural	000	
			Hazards	900	_
			Surplus transferred to Accumulated Funds	4,715	1,435
	\$56,225	\$47,629		\$56,225	\$47,629

17

INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS ACCOUNT

Statement of Receipts and Payments for the year ended 30 June 1979

\$	PAYMENTS	\$
200	Transfer to Savings Investment (ex Main Account)	200
,	Membership, I.S.S.C.	1,180
3,500	Expenses, visit, Chinese Delegation	527
	Science and Technology	1,000
		3
	Balance at Bank	2,290
\$5,200		\$5,200
2,250		
200		
89		
\$2,539		
1,500		
\$1,039		
	200 1,500 3,500 \$5,200 200 89 \$2,539 1,500	Transfer to Savings Investment (ex Main Account) Membership, I.S.S.C. Expenses, visit, Chinese Delegation Contribution, Academy of Science, Conference on Science and Technology Bank Charges (cheque book) Balance at Bank \$5,200 2,250 200 89 \$2,539 1,500

G. M. NEUTZE, Hon. Treasurer

I have examined the books and accounts of the Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia (International Relations). I have received all the information and explanations I have required and am of the opinion that the above statement of Receipts and Payments represents a true and fair view of the affairs of the Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia (International Relations) for the year ended 30 June 1979.

THE ACADEMY OF THE SOCIAL SCIENCES IN AUSTRALIA RESEARCH PROJECT ACCOUNT

Receipts and Payments Account for the year ended 30 June 1979

RECEIPTS	\$	PAYMENTS	\$
Royalties – Allen & Unwin Pty. Ltd. ANU	1,627 2,281	Royalties – C. D. Rowley F. Gale Purchases – Survey of Economics (Allen & Unwin) Bank Charges Balance at Bank, 30 June 1979	486 4 647 3 2,768
	\$3,908		\$3,908
SAVINGS INVESTMENT ACCOUNT			
Transfers from Main Account ,, ,, Immigration Project	9,500		
 Savings Investment 	12,293		
Current AccountMigrant Education	178		
- Savings Investment	671		
 Current Account 	63		
" Vietnamese Current Account	14		
" Economics Project	670		
Savings InvestmentCurrent Account	679 119		
Interest Account	488		
Balance at Bank, 30 June 1979	\$24,005		

G. M. NEUTZE, Hon. Treasurer

I have examined the books and accounts of the Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia (Research Project Account). I have received all the information and explanations I have required and am of the opinion that the above Statement of Receipts and Payments represents a true and fair view of the financial affairs of the Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia (Research Project Account) for the year ended 30 June 1979.

L. A. BELLINGHAM, B.Com., FASA, Hon. Auditor

19

AUSTRALIAN ECONOMICS PROJECT

Statement of Receipts and Payments for the period 1 July 1978 to 30 April 1979

\$	PAYMENTS	\$
756 1,050	Scripts and Surveys Transferred to A.S.S.A. Research Project Savings	1,737
36 14	Investment Account No. 902755 (NSW Savings Bank) on 30/4/79	119
\$1,856		\$1,856
CS PROJECT	Transferred to Current Account Balance transferred to A.S.S.A. Research Project	1,050
1,649 80	Savings Investment Account No. 902755 (NSW Savings Bank on 2/5/79	679
\$1,729		\$1,729
	756 1,050 36 14 \$1,856 CS PROJECT 1,649 80	Transferred to A.S.S.A. Research Project Savings Investment Account No. 902755 (NSW Savings Bank) on 30/4/79 Transferred to Current Account Balance transferred to A.S.S.A. Research Project Savings Investment Account No. 902755 (NSW Savings Bank on 2/5/79

G. M. NEUTZE, Hon. Treasurer

I have examined the books and accounts of the Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia (Australian Economics Project). I have received all the information and explanations I have required and am of the opinion that the above Statement of Receipts and Payments represents a true and fair view of the financial affairs of the Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia (Australian Economics Project) as at the dates of the closure of accounts 30 April 1979 (Current Account) and 2 May 1979 (Investment Account).

L. A. BELLINGHAM, B.Com., FASA, Hon. Auditor

MIGRANT EDUCATION PROJECT

Statement of Receipts and Payments for the period 1 July 1978 to 28 February 1979

RECEIPTS	\$	PAYMENTS	\$
Balance at Bank 1 July 1978	62	Balance transferred to A.S.S.A. Research Project	
Bank Interest to 28 February 1979	1	Savings Investment Account No. 902755	
	\$63	(NSW Savings Bank) on 28/2/79	63
	φ05 ====		\$63
			ΨΟ.
INVESTMENT - MIGRANT EDUCATION			
(Account No. 901198)	i	Balance transferred to A.S.S.A. Research Project	
Balance 1/7/78	646	Savings Investment Account No. 902755	
Interest to 30/11/78	25	(NSW Savings Bank) on 30/11/78	67
	Ď/71		# < =
	\$671		\$67
			-

G. M. NEUTZE, Hon. Treasurer

I have examined the books and accounts of The Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia (Migrant Education Project). I have received all the information and explanations I have required and am of the opinion that the above Statement of Receipts and Payments represents a true and fair view of the financial affairs of The Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia (Migrant Education Project) as at the dates of the closure of the accounts — 30 November 1978 (Investment Account) and 28 February 1979 (Current Account).

L. A. BELLINGHAM, B.Com., FASA, Hon. Auditor

22

THE ACADEMY OF THE SOCIAL SCIENCES IN AUSTRALIA

VIETNAMESE PROJECT

Statement of Receipts and Payments for the period 1 July 1978 to 28 February 1979

RECEIPTS Balance at Bank 1 July 1978 Refund stamp duty on unused cheques and bank interest	\$ 7 7	PAYMENTS Balance transferred to A.S.S.A. Research Project Savings Investment Account No. 902755 (NSW Savings Bank) on 28/2/79	\$
	14		14

G. M. NEUTZE, Hon. Treasurer

I have examined the books and accounts of The Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia (Vietnamese Project). I have received all the information and explanations I have required and am of the opinion that the above Statement of Receipts and Payments represents a true and fair view of the affairs of The Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia (Vietnamese Project) as at the date of the closure of the account on 28 February 1979.

L. A. BELLINGHAM, B.Com., FASA, Hon. Auditor

THE ACADEMY OF THE SOCIAL SCIENCES IN AUSTRALIA IMMIGRATION PROJECT

Statement of Receipts and Payments for the period 1 July 1978 to 30 April 1979

\$	PAYMENTS	\$
910	ANU – Art work (net)	40
1,000 25	ANU – Publications – Dept. of Demography Balance transferred to A.A.S.A. Research Project	1,718
\$1.936	(NSW Savings Bank) on 30/4/79	178
===		\$1,936
12,657 636	Transferred to Current Account Transferred to A.S.S.A. Research Project Savings Investment Account No. 902755	1,000
	NSW Savings Bank) on 12/10/78	6,000
	Savings Investment Account on 2/5/79	6,293
\$13,293		\$13,293
	\$1,936 \$1,936 =	ANU – Art work (net) 1,000 ANU – Publications – Dept. of Demography Balance transferred to A.A.S.A. Research Project Savings Investment Account No. 902755 (NSW Savings Bank) on 30/4/79 Transferred to Current Account Transferred to A.S.S.A. Research Project Savings Investment Account No. 902755 NSW Savings Bank) on 12/10/78 Balance transferred to A.S.S.A. Research Project Savings Investment Account on 2/5/79

G. M. NEUTZE, Hon. Treasurer

I have examined the books and accounts of the Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia (Immigration Project). I have received all the information and explanations I have required and am of the opinion that the above Statement of Receipts and Payments represents a true and fair view of the financial affairs of the Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia (Immigration Project) as at the dates of the closure of accounts – 30 April 1979 (Current Account) and 2 May 1979 (Investment Account).

L. A. BELLINGHAM, B. Com., FASA, Hon. Auditor

LIST OF PRESIDENTS OF THE ACADEMY OF THE SOCIAL SCIENCES IN AUSTRALIA

- *Dr K. S. Cunningham: April, 1943 February, 1952 (Australian Council for Educational Research)
- Professor Sir Douglas B. Copland: March, 1952 August, 1953 (Australian National University)
- Mr (later Sir) Leslie G. Melville: August 1953 June, 1958 (Australian National University)
- Professor S. J. Butlin: June, 1958 June, 1962 (University of Sydney)
- Professor W. D. Borrie: June, 1962 October, 1964 (Australian National University)
- Professor W. M. O'Neil: October, 1964 November, 1966 (University of Sydney)
- Professor P. H. Partridge: November, 1966 November, 1969 (Australian National University)
- Professor R. I. Downing: November, 1969 November, 1972 (University of Melbourne)
- Professor G. Sawer: November, 1972 November, 1975 (Australian National University)
- Professor F. H. G. Gruen: November, 1975 November, 1978 (Australian National University)
- Professor A. G. L. Shaw, November, 1978-(Monash University)

The first independent body, the Social Science Research Council of Australia, was formed in 1952 and in August 1971 this Council changed its name to the Academy of the Social Sciences in Australia.

^{*} During this period the organisation was constituted as the Social Science Research Committee of the Australian National Research Council of which the Chairman was a member.

FELLOWS OF THE ACADEMY OF SOCIAL SCIENCES IN AUSTRALIA

June 1979

The year of election is shown in brackets.

* indicates overseas member

AITKIN, D. A., (1975) Professor of Politics, Macquarie University.

ALEXANDER, F., (1944) Emeritus Professor of History, University of Western Australia. (Honorary Fellow 1969.)

ANDREWS, J., (1959) Emeritus Professor of Geography, University of Melbourne.

APPLEYARD, R. T., (1967) Professor of Economic History, University of Western Australia.

ARGY, V. E., (1977) Professor of Economics, Macquarie University.

ARNDT, H. W., (1954) Professor of Economics, Australian National University.

*BARNES, J. A., (1957) Professor of Sociology, Churchill College, Cambridge.

BEDDIE, B. D., (1963) Professor of Government, Faculty of Military Studies, University of New South Wales.

BENN, S. I., (1965) Professorial Fellow in Philosophy, Australian National University.

BERNDT, R. M., (1962) Professor of Anthropology, University of Western Australia.

BLAINEY, G. N., (1970) Ernest Scott Professor of History, University of Melbourne.

BOLTON, G. C., (1976) Professor and Dean, School of Social Inquiry, Murdoch University.

BORRIE, W. D., (1950) Emeritus Professor, Australian National University and Director, Academy of Social Sciences in Australia.

BOURKE, P., (1977) Professor of American Studies, Flinders University of South Australia.

*BOWEN, I., (1961) Emeritus Professor of Economics, Xalet Verena, Escas, La Massana, Andorra.

BOXER, A. H., (1975) Assistant Secretary, Department of the Treasury, Canberra.

BRENNAN, T., (1975) Professor of Social Administration, University of Sydney.

BROOKFIELD, H. C., (1977) Professor of Geography, University of Melbourne.

BROOM, L., (1972) Emeritus Professor, Australian National University.

BROWN, R. G., (1973) Professor of Social Administration, Flinders University.

BROWN, R. R., (1973) Professorial Fellow in Philosophy, Australian National University.

BULL, H. N., (1968) Professor of International Relations, Balliol College, Oxford.

BURNS, A. L., (1972) Head, Centre for Foreign Politics (Western Europe), Australian National University.

- BURTON, H., (1945) Emeritus Professor, Australian National University. (Honorary Fellow 1973.)
- CALDWELL, J. C., (1972) Professor of Demography, Australian National University.
- CAMERON, B. D., (1958) Professor of Applied Economics, Australian National University.
- CAMPBELL, E. M., (1972) Professor of Law, Monash University.
- CAMPBELL, K. O., (1964) Professor of Agricultural Economics, University of Sydney.
- CAPELL, A., (1977) 276 Pacific Highway, Lindfield, N.S.W.
- CHAMBERS, R. J., (1964) Professor of Accounting, University of Sydney.
- CHAMPION, R. A., (1968) Professor of Psychology, University of Sydney.
- CLARK, C. G., (1970) Research Consultant, Department of Economics, University of Queensland.
- CLARK, C. M. H., (1952) Emeritus Professor of History, Australian National University.
- COCHRANE, D., (1974) Dean of Economics and Politics, Monash University.
- CONNELL, W. F., (1964) Emeritus Professor of Education, University of Sydney.
- COOMBS, H. C., (1943) Centre for Research and Environmental Studies, Australian National University. (Honorary Fellow 1973.)
- CORDEN, W. M., (1977) Professor of Economics, Australian National University.
- COWEN, Sir Zelman, (1952) Governor-General of Australia. (Honorary Fellow 1977.)
- CRAWFORD, Sir John, (1944) Emeritus Professor and Chancellor, Australian National University. (Honorary Fellow 1975.)
- DAVIES, A. F., (1965) Professor of Political Science, University of Melbourne.
- DAVIS, S. R., (1964) Professor of Politics, Monash University.
- DAY, R. H., (1967) Professor of Psychology, Monash University.
- DERHAM, Sir David, (1967) Vice-Chancellor, University of Melbourne.
- DILLON, J. L., (1975) Professor of Agricultural Economics and Business Administration, University of New England.
- DUNN, S. S., (1973) Chairman, Education Research and Development Committee, Canberra.
- EDWARDS, H. R., (1964) 12 John Savage Crescent, West Pennant Hills, N.S.W.
- ELKIN, A. P., (1943) Emeritus Professor of Anthropology, University of Sydney. (Honorary Fellow 1965.)
- FEATHER, N. T., (1970) Professor of Psychology, Flinders University of South Australia.
- FISK, E. K., (1974) Professorial Fellow in Economics, Australian National University.
- *FITZGERALD, C. P., (1953) Emeritus Professor, Australian National University.
- FORD, H. A. J., (1977) Professor of Commercial Law, University of Melbourne.
- FREEMAN, J. D., (1973) Professor of Anthropology, Australian National University.

GALE, G. Fay, (1978) Professor of Geography, University of Adelaide.

GATES, R. C., (1968) Vice-Chancellor, The University of New England.

GEDDES, W.R., (1960) Professor of Social Anthropology, University of Sydney.

GIBB, C. A., (1956) Emeritus Professor, Australian National University.

GLOW, P., (1974) Professor of Psychology, University of Adelaide.

GOLDBERG, L., (1969) Professor of Accounting, University of Melbourne.

GOODNOW, J. J., (1976) Professor of Psychology, Macquarie University.

GRANT, J. McB., (1975) Professor of Applied Economics, University of Tasmania.

GREENWOOD, G., (1950) Professor of History, University of Queensland.

GRUEN, F. H. G., (1970) Professor of Economics, Australian National University.

HANCOCK, K. J., (1968) Professor of Economics, Flinders University.

HARCOURT, G. C., (1971) Professor of Economics, University of Adelaide.

HARPER, N. D., (1959) Emeritus Professor of American History, University of Melbourne.

HASLUCK, Sir Paul, (1948) 77 St. George's Terrace, Perth, W.A. 6000 (Honorary Fellow 1969.)

HENDERSON, R. F., (1964) Director of the Institute of Applied Economic Research, University of Melbourne.

HIATT, L. R., (1974) Reader in Anthropology, University of Sydney.

HOGBIN, I., (1943) Professorial Fellow in Anthropology, Macquarie University.

HOWARD, C., (1975) Professor of Law, University of Melbourne.

HUGHES, C. A., (1976) Department of Political Science, Research School of Social Sciences, Australian National University.

INGLIS, K. S., (1975) Professor of History, Australian National University.

ISAAC, J. E., (1971), Deputy President, Australian Conciliation and Arbitration Commission.

JARRETT, F. G., (1976) Professor of Economics, University of Adelaide.

JAYAWARDENA, C., (1970) Professor of Anthropology and Sociology, Macquarie University.

JONES, F. L., (1974) Professor of Sociology, Australian National University.

KAMENKA, E., (1969) Professor of the History of Ideas, Australian National University.

KARMEL, P. H., (1952) Chairman, Tertiary Education Commission, Canberra.

KEATS, J. A., (1978) Professor of Psychology, University of Newcastle.

KEESING, R. M., (1975) Professor of Anthropology, Australian National University.

KEEVES, J. P., (1977) Director, Australian Council for Educational Research.

LA NAUZE, J. A., (1948) Emeritus Professor, Australian National University.

LAWRENCE, P., (1967) Professor of Anthropology, University of Sydney.

LAWTON, G. H., (1959) Emeritus Professor of Geography, University of Adelaide.

LEGGE, J. D., (1964) Dean, Faculty of Arts and Professor of History, Monash University.

LOGAN, M. I., (1973) Professor of Geography, Monash University.

LOVEDAY, P., (1977) Senior Fellow in Political Science, Australian National University.

LOVIBOND, S. H., (1972) Professor of Psychology, University of New South Wales.

LOW, D. A., (1975) Vice-Chancellor, Australian National University.

McBRIAR, A. M., (1974) Professor of History, Monash University.

MacDONAGH, O. O. G. M., (1965) Professor of History, Australian National University.

McGEE, T. G., (1975) Director, Institute of Asian Research, University of British Columbia, Vancouver.

MACKIE, J. A. C., (1976) Head, Political and Social Change, Australian National University.

MANN, L., (1975) Professor of Psychology, Flinders University.

MARTIN, A. W., (1967) Senior Research Fellow in History, Australian National University.

MARTIN, J. I., (1971) Senior Research Fellow in Sociology, Australian National University.

MATHEWS, R. L., (1959) Professor of Accounting and Public Finance, Australian National University.

MAYER, H., (1965) Professor of Political Theory, University of Sydney.

MELVILLE, Sir Leslie, (1943) Research School of Pacific Studies, Australian National University.

MILLER, J. D. B., (1967) Professor of International Relations, Australian National University.

MONRO, D. H., (1964) Emeritus Professor of Philosophy, Monash University.

MUNN, N. L., (1964) Professor of Psychology, University of Adelaide.

MUSGRAVE, P. W., (1974) Professor of Sociology of Education, Monash University.

MYER, K. B., (1972) 314 Bourke Street, Melbourne. (Honorary Fellow 1972.)

NEALE, R. G., (1976) Director-General, Australian Archives.

NEUTZE, G. M., (1974) Professorial Fellow, Urban Research Unit, Australian National University.

NEVILE, J. W., (1972) Professor of Economics, University of New South Wales.

*O'CONNELL, D. P., (1971) Chichele Professor of Public International Law, University of Oxford.

OESER, O. A., (1947) Emeritus Professor of Psychology, University of Melbourne.

O'NEIL, W. M., (1944) Emeritus Professor, University of Sydney.

O'NEILL, R. J., (1978) Professorial Fellow in International Relations and Head, Strategic and Defence Studies Centre, Australian National University.

OVER, R. F., (1975) Professor of Psychology, La Trobe University.

PARKER, R. S., (1959) Emeritus Professor, Australian National University.

PARTRIDGE, P. H., (1945) Emeritus Professor, Australian National University.

PASSMORE, J. A., (1943) Professor of Philosophy, Australian National University.

PERKINS, J. O. N., (1973) Professor of Economics, University of Melbourne.

PITCHFORD, J. D., (1972) Professor of Economics, Australian National University.

POLLARD, A. H., (1969) Emeritus Professor of Economic Statistics, Macquarie University.

POWELL, A. A. L., (1973) Professor, Ritchie Chair of Research in Economics, University of Melbourne.

POYNTER, J. R., (1971) Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Research), University of Melbourne.

PREST, W., (1944) Emeritus Professor of Economics, University of Melbourne.

PRICE, C. A., (1967) Professorial Fellow in Demography, Australian National University.

RAWSON, D. W., (1978) Senior Fellow in Political Science, Australian National University.

REAY, M. O., (1977) Senior Fellow in Anthropology, Australian National University.

RIGBY, T. H. R., (1971) Professorial Fellow in Political Science, Australian National University.

ROSS, J., (1974) Professor of Psychology, University of Western Australia.

ROWLEY, C. D., (1968) Visiting Fellow, Department of Sociology, Australian National University.

RUSSELL, R. W., (1973) Professor of Psychobiology and Vice-Chancellor, Flinders University.

RUZICKA, L. T., (1976) Professorial Fellow, Department of Demography, Research School of Sciences, Australian National University.

RYAN, K. W., (1978) Professor of Law, University of Queensland.

SAWER, G., (1952) Emeritus Professor, Australian National University.

SCOTT, P., (1964) Professor of Geography, University of Tasmania.

SCOTT, W. A., (1977) Professor of Psychology, Australian National University.

SELLECK, R. J. W., (1978) Professor of History of Education, Monash University.

SERLE, A. G., (1973) Reader in History, Monash University.

SHATWELL, K. O., (1948) Professor of Law, University of Sydney.

SHAW, A. G. L., (1967) Professor of History, Monash University.

SHEEHAN, P. W., (1978) Professor of Psychology, University of Queensland.

SIMKIN, C. G. F., (1972) Professor of Economics, University of Sydney.

SINCLAIR, A. W., (1974) Professor of Economic History, Flinders University.

*SMITH, R. H. T., (1974) Professor of Geography, University of British Columbia.

SMOLICZ, J. J., (1976) Reader, Department of Education, University of Adelaide.

SNAPE, R. H., (1978) Professor of Economics, Monash University.

SPANN, R. N., (1956) Professor of Government and Public Administration, University of Sydney.

SPATE, O. H. K., (1954) Emeritus Professor, Research School of Pacific Studies, Australian National University.

SPEARRITT, D., (1971) Professor of Education, University of Sydney.

STANNER, W. E. H., (1960) Emeritus Professor, Australian National University.

STOLJAR, S. J., (1976) Professor of Law, Research School of Social Sciences, Australian National University.

STONE, J. O., (1972) Secretary, Commonwealth Treasury, Canberra.

STONE, Julius, (1943) Emeritus Professor of International Law and Jurisprudence, University of Sydney and Professor of Law, University of NSW. (Honorary Fellow 1975.)

STOUT, A. K., ((1943) Emeritus Professor of Philosophy, University of Sydney.

STRETTON, H., (1972) Reader in History, University of Adelaide.

SUTCLIFFE, J. P., (1964) Professor of Psychology, University of Sydney.

TAFT, R., (1964) Professor of Education, Monash University.

TUCKER, G. S. L., (1965) Professor of Economic History, Australian National University.

TURNER, L. C. F., (1974) Emeritus Professor of History, University of New South Wales.

TURNOVSKY, S. J., (1976) Professor of Economics, Australian National University.

*VICKERS, D., (1976) Professor of Economics, University of Massachusetts, Boston, Massachusetts, U.S.A.

*WALKER, K. F., (1953) Ecole Polytechnique, Paris.

WALLACE, R. H., (1978) Reader in Economics, Flinders University.

WALLER, P. L., (1977) Professor of Law, Monash University.

WARD, J. M., (1954) Deputy Vice-Chancellor and Professor of History, University of Sydney.

WARD, R. G., (1971) Professor of Human Geography, Australian National University.

WELFORD, A. T., (1972) Professor of Psychology, University of Adelaide.

WHITE, Sir Harold, (1943) 27 Mugga Way, Canberra.

WHITEHEAD, D. H., (1977) Professor of Economics, La Trobe University.

WILLIAMS, B. R., (1968) Professor and Vice-Chancellor, University of Sydney.

WILSON, Sir Roland, (1972) 64 Empire Circuit, Canberra. (Honorary Fellow 1972.)

WRIGHT, F. K., (1977) Professor of Accounting, University of Melbourne.

WURM, S., (1976) Professor of Linguistics, Research School of Pacific Studies, Australian National University.

YOUNGSON, A. J., (1976) Director, Research School of Social Sciences, Australian National University.

ZUBRZYCKI, J., (1967) Professor of Sociology, Australian National University.

